ALASKA STATE LEQ SLATURE
SENATE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SCCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COW TTEE
April 14, 2004
1:41 p.m

TAPE (S) 04 — 21822

MEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Fred Dyson, Chair
Senat or Lyda Green, Vice Chair
Senator Gary W/ ken

Senat or Bettye Davis

Senat or G et chen CGuess
MEMBERS ABSENT

Al l nmenbers present

COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 383
"An Act relating to the Alaska children's trust grant awards."

MOVED SB 383 QUT OF COW TTEE

CS FOR HOUSE BI LL NO 25(JUD)

"An Act relating to health care decisions, including do not
resuscitate orders, anat om cal gifts, and nental heal t h
treatment decisions, and to powers of attorney relating to
health care, including anatomcal gifts and nental health

treatment decisions; and providing for an effective date."
HEARD AND HELD

SENATE BI LL NO. 376
"An Act relating to public assistance and subpoena powers."

Bl LL POSTPONED TO April 16, 2004
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 383

SHORT TI TLE: CHI LDREN S TRUST GRANTS
SPONSCOR(s): HEALTH, EDUCATI ON & SOCI AL SERVI CES

03/ 31/ 04 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

SENATE HES COW TTEE -1- April 14, 2004



03/ 31/ 04
04/ 14/ 04

BILL: HB 25

(S)
(S)

HES, FIN
HES AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

SHORT TI TLE: HEALTHCARE SERVI CES DI RECTI VES

SPONSOR( s) :

01/21/03
01/ 21/ 03
01/ 21/ 03
02/ 13/ 03
02/ 13/ 03
02/ 13/ 03
02/ 27/ 03
02/ 27/ 03
02/ 27/ 03
03/ 06/ 03
03/ 06/ 03
03/ 06/ 03
03/ 10/ 03
03/ 10/ 03
03/ 10/ 03
03/ 26/ 03
03/ 26/ 03
03/ 28/ 03
03/ 28/ 03
03/ 28/ 03
03/31/03
03/31/03
03/31/03
04/ 07/ 03
04/ 07/ 03
04/ 07/ 03
05/ 06/ 03
05/ 06/ 03
05/ 07/ 03
05/ 07/ 03
05/ 16/ 03
05/ 16/ 03
05/ 16/ 03
03/ 08/ 04
03/ 08/ 04
03/ 08/ 04
03/ 24/ 04
03/ 24/ 04
03/ 24/ 04
04/ 02/ 04

SENATE HES COW TTEE

LLLLRNIIIIIIITIIZIZIZIZIZIZIZIZIZIZIZIZI SIS

(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)

REPRESENTATI VE('s) WEYHRAUCH

PREFI LE RELEASED (1/10/03)

READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
HES, JUD, FIN

HES AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( HES)

HES AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( HES)

HES AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106
Moved CSHB 25(HES) Qut of Conmittee
M NUTE( HES)

HES RPT CS(HES) NT 7DP

DP. GATTO WOLF, HEI NZE, SEATON,
Cl SSNA, KAPSNER, W LSON

JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

-- Meeting Canceled --

JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( JUD)

JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120
Moved CSHB 25(JUD) Qut of Conmittee
M NUTE( JUD)

JUD RPT CS(JUD) NT 5DP

DP: SAMJELS, HOLM GARA, 0OGG MCGU RE
FI N REFERRAL WAl VED

TRANSM TTED TO (S)

VERSI ON:  CSHB 25(JUD)

READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
HES, JUD

HES AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( HES)

HES AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( HES)

HES AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( HES)

HES AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

. April 14, 2004



04/ 02/ 04 (S Bill Postponed to 04/07/04

04/ 07/ 04 (S) HES AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

04/ 07/ 04 (S -- Reschedul ed to 5:30 pm 04/07/04 --
04/ 07/ 04 (S) HES AT 5: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

04/ 07/ 04 (S -- Reschedul ed from 1: 30 04/07/04 --
04/ 14/ 04 (S HES AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

BILL: SB 376

SHORT TI TLE: PUBLI C ASSI STANCE AND SUBPCENA PONER
SPONSCR(s): HEALTH, EDUCATI ON & SOCI AL SERVI CES

03/ 24/ 04 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
03/ 24/ 04 (S) HES, FIN
04/ 14/ 04 (S) HES AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

M5. MARGO McCABE

Al aska Children’s Trust (ACT)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 383.

MS. KAYE SAXON

Al aska Children’s Trust Board

Mat - Su Val | ey, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered a question regardi ng SB 383.

REPRESENTATI VE BRUCE WEYHRAUCH

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Sponsor of HB 25.

M5. MARI E HELM

Christian Science Churches of Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Expressed concern that transferring to hone
be included in HB 25.

M5. CAROLE EDWARDS

Al aska Nurses Associ ation (ANA)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke to the issue of pregnancy in HB 25.

MR JI M CARRCLL

Juneau retired teachers

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports HB 25.

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 3- April 14, 2004



MS. MARI E DARLI N

Capital City Task Force of AARP
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports HB 25.

MS. EM LY NENON

Ameri can Cancer Society (ACS)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Spoke to the patient’s right to control
heal th care decisions, in HB 25.

MR SAM TRI VETTE

Retired Public Enpl oyees of Al aska
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports HB 25.

MR RAY VIDI C
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Encour aged passage of HB 25.

MS. LI NDA SYLVESTER

Staff to Representative Weyhrauch

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Expl ai ned the proposed anendnents to HB 25.

DR. MARI A VWALLI NGTON

Medi cal et hici st

Provi dence Al aska Medi cal Center

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions pertaining to HB 25.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 04-21, SIDE A

CHAI R FRED DYSON cal l ed the Senate Health, Education and Soci al
Services Standing Commttee neeting to order at 1:41 p.m

Present at the call to order were Senators G een, WIken, Davis,
Guess, and Chair Dyson.

SB 383- CH LDREN S TRUST GRANTS

The conmittee took up SB 383.

M5. MARGO MCABE, Alaska Children’s Trust (ACT) Fund Board,
testified from Anchorage and explained the four Kkey provisions

SENATE HES COW TTEE -4- April 14, 2004



in the bill. The first elimnates the $50,000 cap that
currently exists in granting awards to potential grantees
seeking funds for prograns elimnating child abuse and neglect
in Alaska; the second requires that the project include a plan
for self-sufficiency and program mai ntenance; the third limts
funding to four vyears; the fourth allows the board to
di sconti nue grant awards when outcones are not being achieved.

SENATOR LYDA GREEN referenced page 2, line 10 that says, “75
percent of the first-year...” and asked where in the bill the
$50, 000 cap was renoved.

M5. MCABE confirmed that the $50,000 provision is being
repeal ed.

SENATOR CGREEN asked if the whole section is being repeal ed.
CHAI R DYSON noted this was Section 2.

SENATOR GREEN asked why it’s necessary to go from 50 to 75, and
wondered if the intent is for the grant to becone the sole
support for this program or if the project has energy of its
own to create sonething that’s being matched or added to.

M5. MCABE explained that one conponent is to elimnate the
$50, 000 cap. Potential grantees can ask for a small size grant
in the anpbunt of perhaps $5,000, or in an amount in excess of
$50, 000. Second, it relates to self-sufficiency. The first
year, a grantee can apply for funds to cover up to 75 percent of
program costs; in the second year that anpunt can be 50 percent;
in the third and fourth year that can be 25 percent. I n
addition, ACT is asking that there be a sustainability plan from
the start in order to ensure that the entities have plans
substantiating that the prograns don’t go away after the funding
st ops. This provides for greater flexibility in choosing the
reci pients of grant awards.

SENATOR GREEN asked what m ght be the maxi mum anmount given to a
single entity if there isn't a cap.

M5. MCABE said it varies in different states. The average
grant across the country is about $50, 000. The current board
favors continuing to fund the smaller grants. There are

opportunities to fund larger progranms, as seen in other states.
She nentioned M ssouri as recently having an average grant size
of $100,000 to 17 fam ly-resource centers. She reiterated that

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 5- April 14, 2004



a mxinmm or mninmum anmount is not being proposed so that
greater flexibility can be achieved.

SENATOR CGRETCHEN GUESS confirmed that while this mght be the
intent of the current board, it sets a precedent so that there
could be a grant for $250,000 at sone future time. That isn't
the intent of the trust or statute, but it would be allowed wth
t hi s change.

M5. MCABE responded that the current board’ s thinking “is not
that” and that while concern regarding what future boards would
do is necessary, this legislation would open the door for
private foundations to give larger amounts of noney that could
then be turned around to |arger prograns. She said the board
woul d have to exercise due diligence in making sure that the
right amount of funds go to the prograns nobst effective in
conbating this problem She said the current board is capable
of making such decisions, and she hopes the sane will hold true
with future boards.

SENATOR GREEN asked her to repeat what she said about private
f oundati ons.

M5. McCABE said, for exanple, if a private foundation chose to
gi ve $100, 000 but indicated that the noney needed to be spent by
the end of the year, or there was sone condition on it, it would
be hard to break that into smaller grants and turn it around
quickly. This legislation wuld allow for the flexibility to
issue a larger grant. She inforned nenbers that a $600, 000
appropriation could be comng to the fund in this cycle. The
nonies would have to be spent relatively soon - possibly by
Septenber — and the goal would be to spend the noney on snall
comuni ty-based prograns but also to invest in a nedia canpaign
or sone other l|arger program that could help conbat the problem
of child abuse and negl ect. She said that is just one exanple,
and the hope is that over the next few years, part of the
strategic planning process would be to attract |arger suns of
noney fromdifferent entities including private foundations, and
per haps the federal governnent.

SENATOR GUESS asked if the current funding of the trust, besides
fund raising, cones from interest paynments from the principal
that was invested sonewhere in line with the permanent fund.
She questioned whether $600,000 could be deposited in the
principal so that the board could use the interest fromthat to
fund prograns.

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 6- April 14, 2004



M5. MCABE said that wouldn’t be possible in this particular
case because the noney is to be spent in this fiscal year, in
the federal governnment’s current appropriations cycle. She
t hought specific language in that particular allocation says it
can’t be added to principal, but needs to be spent on prograns.
She said it could be that future appropriations or donations
fromprivate trusts are not worded that way.

SENATOR WLKEN said he had three questions, and he began by
asking whether the trustees support SB 383 because they are
referred to obliquely in the sponsor statenent.

M5. MCABE responded that the current board of the ACT fund
supports the bill. The thinking is that it provides greater
flexibility to the board in the grant-giving process, and allows
for nore responsiveness to community needs and allows for grants

of all sizes. Particularly, the pieces that require the
sustainability plan and the ability of the board to discontinue
grants if objectives aren’t net will help to ensure that nonies
are being spent appropriately on prograns that will help to end

this problem

SENATOR W LKEN asked how the trust has interfaced wth other
fundi ng sources, for exanple the Rasnmussen Foundati on. He said
he was going to request a letter regarding another issue;
perhaps the answer to that question could be included in the
letter. He then asked how the Children’s Trust nobney has been
| everaged in the past to access other capital pools.

M5. McCABE asked if he wanted her to respond at this tine.

SENATOR WLKEN said no, but that since SB 383 was going to
Senat e Fi nance, he would appreciate an answer at that tinme al ong
with the letter having to do with the ‘05 grants. He expressed
concern as to why the ‘05 grants haven't yet been designated.
That was brought to his attention from folks in Fairbanks, he
sai d. He wote a letter to the conm ssioner about a nonth ago
inquiring as to the status; he asked Ms. McCabe to follow up on
that letter so that when the bill cones to Finance, she could
provide himwth an answer as to the status of the ‘05 grants,
the intent of the departnent, and the answer to the |everage
i ssue.

M5. McCABE agreed to do so.

SENATOR GREEN asked if the entire funding package of the
Children’s Trust goes through the regular process wth the

SENATE HES COW TTEE -7- April 14, 2004



capital budget or if it’'s possible to dispose of and award
grants outside the | egislative budget process.

SENATOR WLKEN said he believes it is outside of the budget
process and it’s not in the capital or operating budgets. He
asked Ms. McCabe if this is correct.

M5. McCABE said the fund is a separate entity and that “we spend
the net income of it.”

SENATOR GREEN said she has seen a report for the year after it
came back, so she would also like an updated report of what
happened in the |last two years.

SENATOR W LKEN asked if the status of grants in the |last couple
of years woul d be avail abl e.

M5. MCABE said absolutely, that the annual report was just
pr epar ed. She said she had the information avail able, but was
happy to put it in letter format wth additional detailed
information on the grants for the Finance Conmttee.

SENATOR W LKEN said he would also pass that information on to
peopl e i n Fairbanks who expressed the concern.

CHAI R DYSON noted Senator WI ken's presunption that SB 383 would
pass out of commttee today was probably true. He said if or
when it gets to Finance, he wuld enjoy a list of the
recipients. Since President Bush and Alaska’s admnistration is
so interested in involving the faith-based conmunity in
provi di ng human services, he was particularly interested to see
i f the Children’s Trust has involved folks from those
comunities, or not.

SENATOR GREEN asked if there were enough applicants to fill the
$600, 000 request, or if they were not up to par.

M5. MCABE said unfortunately the noney has not vyet been

recei ved. If it conmes, it would be in June or July because of
delays in Congress in passing appropriation bills this past
year. Because the fiscal year ends around Septenber, those
funds would need to be spent by then. In that 3-nonth period,
an RFP would need to be submtted, and potential grantees would
need to respond. There could be a lot of responses from
different entities for smaller projects, and there would be
support for those if they nmet the objectives. She expressed

wanting to retain flexibility to work on sonme |arger projects.

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 8- April 14, 2004



A nmedia canpaign is a very interesting project because it could
hei ghten awareness of the problem and provide a resource for
people to turn to. She noted that Rebecca Parker rem nded her
that the mnmedia canpaign could be used to |everage obtaining
additional funds into the trust by pronoting the trust itself,
and making it known that contributions are accepted.

SENATOR GREEN asked if the $600,000 is fromfederal dollars.
M5. McCABE said yes.

SENATOR GREEN said very often there is a waiver provision or an
extension, and wondered if this was a possibility.

M5. MCABE said they would pursue that. The board didn't
actively solicit these nonies and they are trying to figure out
how to work with and use them and make sure they are neeting the
requirenents if those funds materiali ze. In the next couple of
years, the strategic plan includes becomng nore proactive in
| ooking for nonies like this from private foundations and ot her
entities. The board is trying to understand the process right
Now.

SENATOR GREEN asked, “Have you put the word on the street that
this is a possibility?”

M5. MCABE said, “No, we haven’'t wanted to dissenm nate that
information until we're sure it’s going to be deposited in the
fund.”

SENATOR GUESS referred to Section 1, line 4, “the net incone of
the trust” and nentioned the use of the interest off of the
trust. She asked why the $600, 000 couldn’'t go to the principal
but “that’s not net inconme, that would be outside of that.” She
asked if the Children’s Trust couldn’'t use that noney for the
medi a canpai gn because it has to award a grant to soneone el se
for that nedia canpaign, and that canpaign has to have a self-
sufficient proposal. If the grant cones through, she said she
was confused whether the Children’s Trust or a grant recipient
would do that mnmedia canpaign, and how such a large nedia
canpai gn woul d be sustai ned over tine.

M5. MCABE responded that the board hasn’'t decided where that
noney mght go, but she thinks it would go toward snal

comuni ty-based grants as well as sonething like a nedia
canpai gn. In current statute, there is sonme leeway in spending
noney to pronote the fund. Also, there are other organizations

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 9- April 14, 2004



interested in this idea that could be a grant as well. Like the
tobacco prevention canpaign, which was an alliance of a nunber
of different entities, and was funded in part through grant
noni es. It could go that route as well. She advised that they
would neet on April 30 to review the current grant and to
address sone of these issues.

CHAI R DYSON agreed that Senator Guess’s question regarding the

| anguage on page 1, line 4, “In awarding grants from the net
incone...” allows them to be a pass-through agency for grants
authorized for other organizations. He said what the trust
wants to do is probably fine, in general. He could argue that
Senat or Guess’s concern could be better dealt with in Finance,
so the bill could either be passed along to deal wth that
issue, or it could be set aside and addressed on Friday while
the |anguage gets fixed. He asked Senator Guess for she
opi ni on.

SENATOR GUESS noted that neither she nor Senator Davis were on
the Fi nance Conmittee.

SENATOR GREEN read from AS 37.14.200, “the principal of the
trust consists of legislative appropriations to the trust and
gifts, bequests, and contributions of cash or other assets from
a person” and asked if the governnent could be considered as a
“person” and said this inplied that the contribution would go
into the principal. This needs addressing, she said.

CHAI R DYSON asked Kaye Saxon if she would speak to this concern.

M5. KAYE SAXON, Alaska Children’s Trust Board, testified from
the Mat-Su and enphasized that renoving the $50,000 cap wll
allow flexibility regarding the nonies they do have. She said
there are many new trustees on the board who were trying to find
their footing and determ ne paraneters.

CHAI R DYSON suggested that Senator Guess was correct in assum ng
that the $600,000 could not be used as a pass-through, so
perhaps the trust board could propose an anendnent that could be
addressed in the Finance Conm ttee.

SENATOR BETTYE DAVI S suggested this issue be dealt with in the
Fi nance Commi ttee.

CHAIR DYSON stated that Senator @uess raised an excellent
questi on.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -10- April 14, 2004



SENATOR DAVIS noved to report SB 383 out of conmttee wth
i ndi vidual reconmmendations and the acconpanying zero fiscal
not e(s).

CHAIR DYSON asked if there was any objection. Seeing and
hearing none, it was so ordered.

2:15 p.m

HB  25- HEALTHCARE SERVI CES DI RECTI VES

The comm ttee took up CSHB 25(JUD) .

SENATOR GREEN noved version B [l abeled 23-LS0137\B, Bannister,
4/ 6/ 04] as the worki ng docunent.

CHAIR DYSON asked if there was any objection. Seeing and
hearing none, it was so ordered.

REPRESENTATI VE BRUCE WEYHRAUCH said he wanted the record to
reflect that he has worked wth every possible interest on this

bill, in good faith, and it is a very passionate, enotional, and
very inportant bill. The Legislature nmust deal in a public
policy arena with a broad spectrum of interests. He they have
worked to ensure that one religion or another could not claim
the bill. There is a higher duty to cross those gulfs if they
exi st.

CHAIR DYSON said Representative Wyhrauch preferred to take
public testinony before addressing the anmendnents, which was
fine wth him He infornmed nenbers that he did not intend to
pass the bill out of commttee today.

M5. MARIE HELM of Christian Science Churches of Alaska testified
via teleconference to reiterate the concerns she expressed at
the April 7 neeting. She referred to version B, page 10, line
12 that speaks to transferring the patient. She asked that it
clarify where the patient is being transferred because it's
i nportant that honme be an accepted transfer point.

SENATOR GUESS noted that there is a significant difference
between Versions B and V and then suggested to Chair Dyson and
Representative Wyhrauch that this issue mght be covered in
Section G Representative Wyhrauch acknow edged her point.

M5. CAROLE EDWARDS, Al aska Nurses Association (ANA), said she
testified on this bill many times before, nostly about the

SENATE HES COW TTEE -11- April 14, 2004



issues of pain and artificial fluid and nutrition. She said
today she wanted to testify on the issue of pregnancy. She said
she checked with a wonman in her early 30s who is 8.5 nonths
pregnant with her first child, and who has advance directives
filled out. Upon being asked how she would feel about having
her unborn child kept alive if sonething terrible happened to
her, she said absolutely she would want this child kept alive.
Ms. Edwards then asked her “if there were a statute that didn't
provide for this, would you be hesitant to fill out advance
directives?” She said yes she would. In fact she would rescind
them if she thought that anything would happen to her in the
next few weeks. M. Edwards pointed out that not including life
support for pregnant wonmen mght deter young wonen from filling
out their advance directives.

SENATOR GUESS said she didn’t understand.

CHAI R DYSON explained that a person mght fill out an advance
directive indicating that “If | am irreversibly danaged and
going to die and |I'm comatose, withdraw the life support.” If

this person subsequently becones pregnant and didn’t think about
rescinding that portion of the directive, she could get into the
situation whereby her desire that the child live past her m ght
not be fulfilled.

SENATOR GUESS expressed concern that soneone could have a health
directive that deals with pregnancy, and that directive could be
over-turned by this statute. For exanple, if she directed that
her husband nake decisions, he should nmake those difficult
decisions; “we shouldn’t be over-turning a stated health care
directive.”

M5. EDWARDS asked if the statenent “if | should become pregnant
Il would want to be kept alive for ny child to be born” or
sonething to that effect should be included.

SENATOR GUESS said that if pregnancy is included in this bill,
it should be part of the health care directive or people won't

know to address it. She also strongly suggested that if it is
in the health care directive, “then we go by the health care
directive. If there’s not a health care directive, then we
revert back to the statute. |If there’s a health care directive,
l’m not sure why — and this is the only situation where we're
trumping it — if the directive actually deals with pregnancy.”

CHAIR DYSON said, “And we wll get to that later on in the
di scussi on. And it will be ny perspective that if there’ s a

SENATE HES COW TTEE -12- April 14, 2004



child there that we ought to do everything we can to preserve it
and the state’'s interest in protecting that Ilife trunps a
directive. That’'s sonething we wll disagree on, and we’'ll see
how the commttee feels.”

MR JIM CARROLL, representing Juneau retired teachers, referred
to his own famly situation and expressed support for HB 25,
both personally and from having tal ked with other teachers.

M5. MARIE DARLIN, representing the Capital Cty Task Force of
AARP Al aska, urged passage of this bill. She said it should be
possible to get the bill through the Legislature this year since
there’s been four years of work put into it.

M5. EM LY NENON, Al aska advocacy manager for the Anmerican Cancer
Society (ACS), enphasized that the legislation is critical to
ensure that people’s rights to be treated as intended are
fol | oned. In |looking at the purpose and intent of version B,
what caught ACS' s attention in particular was the |anguage, “It
is the intent of this Act to establish the right of a patient to
control the patient’s own health care decisions.” She said that
ACS feels very strongly about that. Regardi ng the pregnancy
i ssue - and she acknow edged that this would be addressed in the
anendnents - it was her hope and ACS' s intention that people be
able to make those decisions. If there is an advance health
care directive, that “you be able to make what deci sions you can
in advance, but there are always going to be situations that
we’'re not going to be able to perceive, and we feel very
strongly that whoever is acting on behalf of a patient, if they
are not able to act on their own behalf, be able to nmake those
deci sions as necessary, when things conme up.”

M5. NENON referred to the second stated intent of the Act on
page 2, to “create, in the absence of evidence to the contrary,
a presunption that the patient intends to be kept alive,” which
will cover people wthout advance health care directives. For
people with advance health care directives, the desire is to
ensure that they can decide what they want and, in their
absence, that their |oved ones and health care providers can
make those deci sions. She cautioned the commttee to not
legislate a line too fine to deal with situations as they cone
up. She nentioned her personal feelings due to her father whose
living wll was ignored three tines over a nunber of years as he
was dying from Parkinson’s disease. Information was not properly
transferred, and once a doctor did not acknow edge it. Statutes
were not in place to clarify what it neans to have an advance
directive and living will.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -13- April 14, 2004



SENATOR CGREEN referred to her statenent, “to keep it flexible
enough” and asked if she had a particular word, line, or phrase
in mnd.

M5. NENON said she did not have an easy answer, and was
interested in what was going on wth the anendnents. She
commended  Senat or GQuess’s suggestion regarding including
pregnancy as part of the advance directive form She said she
wanted to make sure that if sonebody has an advance directive,
or if they haven't addressed that specifically, that whoever is
acting on their behalf is able to make those decisions. She
said she wasn’'t a nedical professional and the ACS doesn’'t get
involved with the differences between being 1 week pregnant
versus being 8 nonths pregnant, as those are very different
situations and the nedical care involved is very different. She
reiterated that she wanted to nmake it clear that patients can
make decisions about their health care and, if they can’t, then
their nedical professionals and famly can. She said the answer
to the question was no.

SENATOR GREEN asked if the phrase "flexible enough" referred to
the first paragraph at the top of page 2 or to the entire bill

M5. NENON said, “lI was saying that at the top of page two, that
seened pretty clear to ne, that if you don’t have an advance
directive...

TAPE 04-21, SIDE B

MS. NENON continued, “you ve got this presunption and if you
don’t have sonebody acting on your behalf, that's the fall-back
posi tion. But if we do have people acting on the patient’s
behal f, they need to be able to nmake those decisions.”

SENATOR GREEN repeated that she wanted to clarify that M.
Nenon’s coment about flexibility referred to the entire
process.

MS. NENON referred to the section on pregnancy on page 8, and to
the inmportance of meking sure that there’'s an opportunity for
the people acting on behalf of a wonman who's not able to act on
her own behal f to make deci sions as deened necessary.

CHAIR DYSON said he inferred from Ms. Nenon’s coments that in

the exanple of a husband of a comatose and dying wfe, the
desire would be for himto be able to nake the decision to pul

SENATE HES COW TTEE -14- April 14, 2004



the plug on her life support even if that nmeant the death of the
child that she wanted, the child that she hadn’'t chosen to
abort.

M5. NENON said she understood what he was saying but “we’'re
getting into dicey waters no matter which way you go on this.”
ACS s baseline position is stated in (1), under the Purpose and
Intent, to “establish the right of a patient to control the
patient’s own health care decisions.”

CHAI R DYSON said, “And by inference to allow their agent to do
that if they're incapacitated.” He said as he reads this
| egislation as it now stands, if there is an unborn child, the
presunption is to preserve the life of that child and give it a
chance to live.

M5. NENON sai d ACS does not have a position on abortion.

CHAI R DYSON said, “Abortion does not cone into this. This is a
want ed chil d. Do you want a third party to be able to nake the
decision to not give that child a chance to develop to the point
that it can live outside the wonb?”

M5. NENON said the statute was broad, and nore clarity is needed
to address situations involving different requirenents when
delivering a baby of a woman who is 39 weeks [pregnant] who was
in a car accident versus a person who is 2 weeks pregnant
regarding what mght be required to sustain her |ife over that
period of tine. She said that’s the distinction she nakes in
her m nd, and the ACS goes back to “the patient should be able
to control the patient’s own health care decisions.”

CHAI R DYSON nentioned sustaining that wonan’s physical life for
anot her 25 weeks to give that child a chance to survive....

M5. NENON said she believes that decision should be nmade in
conjunction wth famly nenbers and nedical pr of essi onal s
because of not know ng exactly what the situation will be.

CHAI R DYSON asked if this was ACS s position.

M5. NENON answered that ACS' s position is the patient should be
able to control his/her own health care deci sions.

MR. SAM TRIVETTE, President of Retired Public Enployees of

Al aska, testified that the bill is nuch needed, and referred to
his own parents dealing with end-of-life issues in the md-

SENATE HES COW TTEE -15- April 14, 2004



1990s. There was not an “advance directives bill” at that tine.
Fortunately several very caring doctors were able to neet his
parents’ w shes w thout advance directives. Had those caring
physi ci ans not been involved, things would have been a |ot nore
difficult. He stated that having the bill is good public policy
so that people will understand what’s necessary in order to have
advance directives. He said he’d like for this to not be an
issue for his children when he is older. He acknow edged t hat
Representative Weyhrauch and his staff have worked on this bil
and conprom ses have been nade over the past few years. He
expressed support for the bill and for the amendnents.

CHAI R DYSON acknow edged that Representative Wyhrauch and Linda
Syl vester have done wonderful worKk.

MR. RAY VID C stated he was in favor of the bill and said he was
testifying on behalf of the hundreds of people living in Al aska
who can’t be here because they need an organ, or for other
heal t h reasons. He shared a story about a friend who is the
reason he is passionate about the inportance of passing this
bill. In the 10 years that his friend has been on dialysis, he
has undergone self-dialysis 1,500 tinmes and it has weakened his
entire body. In the last two nonths when he was in Anchorage,
he was bl eeding rectally and needed a col onoscopy. Because his
tissues were so weak, they poked through his intestine and he
had to have surgery. Three weeks |later he was healed and on his
way honme when his stitches broke from his breastbone to bel ow
his belly button, and he was back in the hospital again. He had
an ileostony and was back in Juneau; it was a mxed blessing
because he didn't have to worry about some of the chem cals that
he ingested because he didn’t have an operable col on. “Thi s
gentleman is a warrior and he puts on his arnor every day. Your
| egi slation has the power to inpact, not only nmy friend, but
there are literally — and his direct circle of life, his famly,
his nother, father, brothers, cousins, uncles, aunts, friends -
you have the opportunity through your decisions, he will receive
a kidney, and he will have a new lease on life.” |Imagine that
for one person who donates his/her body, there are 50 people who
can benefit from that tissue and those organs, but that life
touches nmany nore; one donation inpacts 1,000 people. He
encour aged passage of HB 25.

CHAIR DYSON confirnmed that this bill goes a long way to enpower
and enabl e organ transpl ants.

CHAI R DYSON noved Anendnent 1 for purposes of discussion.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -16- April 14, 2004



SENATOR GUESS obj ect ed.

V. LI NDA  SYLVESTER, St af f to Representative Wyhrauch,
explained the following [conceptual] amendnents [in revised
format, with corrected page nunbers]:

(Conceptual ) Amendnent No. 1

13.52. 000 To the uncodified | aw

Page 2, Lines 1 - 4
DELETE al | .

Page 2, Line 1
| NSERT:

(2) create, in the absence of evidence to the
contrary, a presunption in favor of life, consistent
with the best interest of the patient.
(3) this Act is not intended to condone, authorize, or
approve nercy killing, assisted suicide, or
eut hanasi a.

Anmendnent No. 2

13.52. 010 Advance health care directives
Page 4, line 14

Delete: “if it conplies with chapter.”
| NSERT: “to the extent that it conplies with Al aska | aw.”

Anmendnent No. 3

New Section Wthhol ding or withdrawi ng of |ife-sustaining
procedur es.
Page 4, Lines 4-7

Delete all.

Page 7, Lines 10-13
Delete all.

Page 8, following Line 8

SENATE HES COW TTEE -17- April 14, 2004



| NSERT: Wthholding or wthdrawing of [|ife-sustaining

pr ocedur es.
(a) Notwithstanding any other provision of

chapter, an agent or surrogate nay determne that Ilife-
sust ai ning procedures may be withheld or withdrawmm from a

patient with a qualifying condition when there is:

(1) a durable power of attorney or other witing
that clearly expresses the patient’s intent
that the procedures be wthheld or wthdrawn;

or

(2) no durable power of attorney or other witing

that clearly expresses the patient’s intent

the contrary, the patient has a qualifying

condition as determ ned under AS 13.52. 160,

wi t hhol ding or wi thdrawi ng the procedures would
be consistent with the patient’s best interest.

Anmendnent No. 4

13.52. 045 Deci si ons for exceptional procedures
Page 8, line 15

Del ete: *“physical”

Anmendnent No. 5

13.52. 050 Pr egnancy
Page 8, line 24
Del ete: “health care”
| NSERT: “Ilife-sustaining procedures”

Page 8, line 25

Del ete: “the health care”
| NSERT: “Ilife-sustaining procedures”

Page 8, line 28

Del ete: “the health care”
| NSERT: “Ilife-sustaining procedures”

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 18- April 14, 2004



Amendnent No. 6

New section: Construction where nental ill ness.
| nsert a new section to read:
In the case of nental illness, nothing in this chapter may

be construed to override or undermne the validity of a
properly executed durable power of attorney.

Amendnent No. 7a

13.52. 300 Optional form

Page 30, Line 26

Del ete all.
I NSERT: | direct that adequate treatnent be provided
at all times for the sole purpose of the

al l eviation of pain or disconfort;

Amendnent No. 7b

13.52. 300 Optional form

Page 30, follow ng Iine 30,
| NSERT: *“ Shoul d | becone unconscious and | am pregnant, |
di rect that

Amendnent No. 8

Definition section.

We recommend a nodified definition to “term nal condition” and
we woul d then support the two circunstances for a qualified
condition (pernmanent unconsciousness & term nal condition)
rather than the three circunstances originally listed in version
B (permanent unconsci ousness, term nal condition and incurable
or irreversible condition). Essentially, we have nel ded
conponents of incurable or irreversible condition into term nal
condi tion.

(35) “qualifying condition” neans a term nal condition or
per manent unconsci ousness in a patient.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -19- April 14, 2004



Term nal condition becones its own definition rather than a
conponent of “qualifying condition”

Term nal condition: a new definition is added to the Definition
section:

( ) Term nal condition neans an incurable or
irreversible illness or injury that w thout adm nistration
of Iife sustaining procedures will result in death in a

short period of time; for which there is no reasonabl e
prospect of cure or recovery; that inposes severe pain or
ot herwi se i mposes an i nhunane burden on the patient; and
for which initiating or continuing |ife-sustaining
procedures in light of the patient’s medical condition,
provi des only m nimal nedical benefit.

Li fe-sustaining procedures is anended by addi ng a new phrase
(underlined in body of the definition).

(27) Li f e-sustai ni ng procedures neans any nedi cal
treatnment, procedure, or intervention that, in the judgnent
of the primary physician, when applied to a patient with a
qgqual i fying condition, would not be effective to renove the
qual i fying condition, would serve only to prolong the dying
process, or, when adnmnistered to a patient with a
condition of pernmanent unconsci ousness, nay keep the
patient alive but is not expected to restore consci ousness;
in this paragraph, “nedical treatnment, procedure or
i ntervention” includes assisted ventilation, renal
di al ysis, surgical procedures, blood transfusions, and the
adm ni stration of drugs, including antibiotics, or
artificial hydration and nutrition.”

MS. SYLVESTER explained that in Amendnent 1, the |anguage in
“(2)” covers the balancing act. Once the decision-maker is on
the scene, that person wll be nmaking those decisions, always
considering the best interests of the patient. That neans that
the burdens of a health care decision are weighed against the
benefits. She confirmed that “(3)” states that the intent is
not to condone nercy killing, assisted suicide, or euthanasia.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH referred to M. Nenon’s concept of a
“fine line” as being inportant to keep in mnd because of there
being so many possible situations. He rem nded nenbers that in
tal king about policy determnation, ultinmately it’s the patient,
their agent, famly, and the physicians who have to make these
decisions, and they are made on a case-by-case basis. It’s
i npossible to dictate in statute what to do or not do in these

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 20- April 14, 2004



enotional, nedical, personal, famly, and social situations.
It’s inappropriate to have to ook for legislative intent while
dealing with sonebody in a critical care unit, at honme, or in
hospi ce.

SENATOR GUESS read from [page 2, line 2], “until given the
opportunity to nake health care decisions directly or through an
agent, a surrogate, or a guardian” and asked, given that
everything goes back to best interest of the patient, why was
this being del eted?

M5. SYLVESTER expl ained that Amendnent 1 is a conproni se. She
said imagine a situation in which sonmeone cones in after an
accident; the presunption is that the patient wants to be kept

alive, we err on the side of life. Current nedical practice
does not wait around to discover what the patient wanted.
Action is taken to stabilize the patient. After that, data is

gat hered about the patient’s physical condition, the prognosis,
and the patient’s health. A decision-naker conmes to the scene.
The concern is that this |anguage would put the presunption in
favor of |ife over the patient’s individual decision-making.
That was a concern in the Nancy Cruzan case, for exanple. The
reason the guardian kept pushing the case further was because

M ssouri had a presunption in favor of life that was so strong
in the living will statute, that her dire, desperate, physical
condition was not enough to trunp that presunption in favor of
life. Having said that, the individual analysis that will occur
during the best interest — naking a decision as to what’s in the
best interest of this patient — envisions decision-making by

others (nedical, famly, or |oved ones).

SENATOR GUESS said the way it currently reads, best interest
trunps the decision of an agent, surrogate, or guardian. She
said she m ght be sonmeone who says:
You better do everything that you can do, and ny
husband gets to the energency room and the people
say, ‘well it’s best interest’ which is kind of this
cost-benefit, all this other stuff, and | as the agent
or the spouse don’t get to make that decision because
this is saying that the best interest trunps versus
the agent, and the best interest is clear but it’s not
cl ear. They’'re great guidelines, it’s well-witten,
but you can have it switch the other way and not be
too heavy in the presunption of life but actually take
away soneone who wanted that strong presunption of
life. Am1 correct?

SENATE HES COW TTEE -21- April 14, 2004



MS. SYLVESTER said this anmendnent was offered by Chair Dyson
and, from Representative Wyhrauch’s point of view, the origina
| anguage was preferable, but it’'s negotiable, as there were
other battles that they felt nore strongly about.

SENATOR QGUESS said to Chair Dyson, there’s an unintended
consequence here and wondered if that was what he was intending.

CHAI R DYSON said he thought it was. He asked if sonebody could
speak to what goes into the best interest determnation for a
patient.

2:52 p.m

DR. MARIA WALLINGTON, nedical ethicist at Providence Al aska
Medical Center, testified via teleconference, saying that the
decision needs to be nmde between physicians who can offer
information regarding the realities of the nedical situation and

the famly, who knows that patient’s values. She referred to
page 37, noting that at the end of the Ilist wunder what’'s
included in the definition of “best interest” is: “(G the
religious beliefs and basic values of the individual receiving
treatnment.” She said at the tine the best interest is being

determ ned, one wants to include all of the nedical realities
and information about the patient, which is provided by the
surrogate. She said she didn't think that taking it out adds
anything and that keeping it in makes it clearer, saying that
she agrees with Senator Guess on this point. She said she was
not willing to fight for it because in the rest of the bill, the
way surrogates have been set up along with the definition of
best interest recaptures that part.

CHAIR DYSON said that in the absence of evidence to the

contrary, like an advance directive, the presunption is to
preserve life, consistent with the best interest. Peopl e go
through this “best interest” list to do the best they can in the

absence of an advance directive, or evidence to the contrary, to
deci de what’'s best for that patient.

SENATOR GUESS said she wouldn’t maintain her objection, but said
it needs to be re-thought. She referenced page 38, line 4, and
said that “religious beliefs and basic values” could be trunped
by the nedical situation. Wth making that point, she w thdrew
her obj ection.

CHAI R DYSON announced Anmendnent 1 was adopt ed.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -22- April 14, 2004



CHAI R DYSON noved Anmendnent 2.

MS5. SYLVESTER explained that there is concern wth states
adopting statutes that offend the sensibility of other states.
Al aska, anong other states, is re-thinking reciprocity.

SENATOR GUESS noted that the correct page nunmber for Amendnent 2
is page 4, line 14 [rather than page 5, line 7].

M5. SYLVESTER continued by explaining that it is inportant that

Al aska honor advance directives, living wills, and anatom cal
gift donations signed by people from out of state. I f sonmeone
is visiting Al aska, those directives need to be honored to the
extent that they conply with Al aska |aw If, for exanple,

soneone is from Oregon, which authorizes assisted suicide, the
desire is to make it clear that those w shes won't be carried
out in Al aska because it doesn’'t conply with Al aska | aw.

CHAI R DYSON asked if a simlar change needed to be nade to page
12, lines 26 — 27.

MS. SYLVESTER responded no, that it has been corrected regarding
anatomcal gifts and the “do not resuscitate” orders.

CHAI R DYSON confirmed that she had just said that page 12, lines
26 — 27, version B was fine as is. He then asked if the
| anguage was al so fine on page 22, lines 18 — 20.

MS. SYLVESTER said that is correct, and explained that the
| anguage on page 22 describes the exenption from liability for
the anatomcal gift, and says that with regard to a physician or
Life Al aska acting on soneone’s anatom cal gift donation nmade in
anot her state, the desire is to prevent liability for acting on
t hat .

CHAIR DYSON acknowl edged that there was no objection to
Amendnent 2. He noved that Anmendnent 2 be anended to correct
t he page nunber of page 4, line 14. He then asked if there was
any further objection. There being none, Anmendnment 2 was
adopt ed.

CHAI R DYSON t hen asked Ms. Syl vester to address Anendnent 3.
MS. SYLVESTER said this was a substantive change and expl ai ned
[using herself as an exanple] that regarding health care

deci sions, she nakes them for herself because she’'s a thinking
person who's awake; she’s not unconscious. If she becane

SENATE HES COW TTEE -23- April 14, 2004



unconsci ous and |ost capacity, soneone else would nake those
deci si ons. If she filled out an advance health care directive,
then she’d have an agent (nane sonebody). If she were part of
the 90 percent of the population who have never filled out an
advance directive, then HB 25 creates a new group of people
called health care surrogates. This would be her husband, for
exanple, or if he was not available, her nother (soneone close,
who woul d know of her wi shes). Those people are nmaking health
care deci sions.

IVB. SYLVESTER continued that if, for exanple she were
unconscious and needed to have her leg fixed after a car
accident - it could be trivial decisions that need to be nade
until regaining capacity - but these people nmay also find
thensel ves in circunstances in which they' re making decisions to
wi thdraw or withhold |ife support. It’s in the interest of the
state to put sone paraneters around that decision-making
process. Wthdrawing |ife support is not the same as consenting
to have a spleen renoved, for exanple. For her husband to nake

those decisions, she has to have a qualifying condition. She
has to be in a persistent vegetative state, for exanple, or be
terminally ill, unconscious, in the advance stages of cancer and

dying, if soneone is going to decide to withhold or wthdraw
artificial hydration, or just let her die. That's an exanple of
t hose paraneters.

MS. SYLVESTER said the agent and surrogate are dealt wth
separately in version B. Chair Dyson wanted to highlight the
inportance of this by giving the w thholding or wthdrawi ng of
| i fe-sustaining procedures a separate section. Ms. Syl vester
referenced the suggested changes included in Amendnent 3. She
explained that these changes elimnate from the equation a
husband who gets into a serious notorcycle accident or a burn
victim who is burned but will recover — those people would not
have a qualifying condition - so therefore it wuld be
i nappropriate and not allowed under this law to wthhold or
Wi thdraw |ife-sustaining procedures. That’s how to ensure that
Al aska is not allow ng euthanasia or nercy killing or anything
| i ke assisted suicide.

CHAI R DYSON npved Anendnent 3.

DR. WALLI NGTON pointed out that the correct reference is page 7,
lines 10-13 [rather than lines 4-9].

M5. SYLVESTER suggested that these be considered as conceptual
anendnent s [ because of the reference nodifications].

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 24- April 14, 2004



CHAI R DYSON t hen noved conceptual Amendment 3.

SENATOR GREEN asked if the new section being added to Amendnent
3 was the first nmention of “durable power of attorney” or if it
occurred throughout the bill

MS. SYLVESTER said regarding consistency, it started out with a
living person, anticipating, “lI’'m an individual” and when an
advance directive is filled out, “I’"ma principal” but later on
the same person (nme, as the individual wth the advance
directive), may becone a patient, so it tracks accordingly.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH cl arified that the question was where,
inthe bill, the term nol ogy appears.

SENATOR GREEN said she wanted to be sure it was consistent, as
she doesn’t renenber seeing it that often.

CHAI R DYSON t hen announced and apol ogi zed that SB 376 woul d not
be heard that day.

CHAIR DYSON asked if there was any objection to Amendnent 3 as
anended.

DR, WALLI NGTON said she wanted to coment on the term nol ogy,
noting that nost of the bill uses “health care agent” rather
t han “durabl e power of attorney.”

MS. SYLVESTER responded that regarding this issue she needs to
| ook through the bill for conformty because various people have
gi ven input at various stages.

CHAI R DYSON sai d seeing and hearing no objection to Amendnent 3,
Amendnent 3 i s adopt ed.

CHAI R DYSON noved Anmendnent 4.

SENATOR GUESS obj ected and noted that the correct page reference
is page 8, line 15.

M5. SYLVESTER explained that +this anendnent deals wth a
protection that cones from the guardianship statute, and is
inportant to folks wth nental illness. Unless there is a
durable power of attorney for health care or another witten
docunent <clearly expressing an individual’s intent to the
contrary, an agent or surrogate may not consent on behalf of the

SENATE HES COW TTEE -25- April 14, 2004



patient to an abortion, sterilization, psychosurgery, or renoval
of bodily organs except when the abortion, sterilization,
psychosurgery, or renoval of bodily organs is necessary to
preserve the |I|ife of the patient or to prevent serious
inpairnment to the health of the patient. |[If soneone is nentally
ill, sterilization was fornerly a standard order. If it's
necessary to prevent harmto the patient’s physical health, then
there’s an option. Because psychosurgery deals wth nental
heal th, the word “physical” needs to be del eted.

CHAI R DYSON asked if the objection was naintained.
SENATOR GUESS sai d no.

CHAI R DYSON announced that with the wi thdrawal of the objection,
Amendnent 4 was adopt ed.

3:15 p.m
CHAI R DYSON nmoved Anendnent 5.

SENATOR GREEN objected for purposes of discussion, and pointed
out that the correct page nunber is page 8 rather than 9.

MS. SYLVESTER explained that this section conmes from current
statute, and it is the “do not resuscitate orders (DNR)” and the
living will statute. It is one of the statutes being repeal ed
and re-inplenmented in HB 25. She said this was expanded to
i ncl ude advance health care directives, but because it created
confusion, we're essentially backing-up. Before inplenmenting a
health care decision for a wonan of chil dbearing age that woul d
affect a fetus, if present, the supervising health care provider
shall take reasonable steps to determine whether a woman is
pregnant. That is standard practice and is not new, as wonen of
this age are routinely checked for pregnancy.

M5. SYLVESTER referred to “(b) Notwi thstanding any other
provision of this chapter to the contrary, an advance health
care directive by a patient or a decision by the person then
authorized to nake health care decisions for a patient may not
be given effect if” certain conditions are present. The patient
is a wonan who is pregnant and is unconscious, |acks capacity,
and nost typically she will be unconscious. The directive is a
decision to withhold or withdraw health care but what it really
meant is |ife-sustaining neasures. W don’t nean health care,
for we don’t nean to inply that if a woman is in a car accident
and is going to recover, but the treatnent is going to harmthe

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 26- April 14, 2004



fetus, the inplication is not to put the life of the fetus ahead
of the life of the nother. Anendnent 4 renoves health care and
puts in |ife-sustaining procedures.

MS. SYLVESTER continued that the w thdrawal or wthhol ding of

health care - and health care needs to be changed to life-
sustai ning procedures — would, in reasonable nedical judgnent,
be likely to result in the death of the patient. It’s clear
fromreading this that the woman is dying or is near death. I t
could be a DNR she could have already died and they
resuscitated her. The last condition to be net is that it is
probable that the fetus could develop to the point of Ilive
birth, if [life-sustaining procedures were provided. Thi s
section of the bill is worded flexibly so that it allows for
di scussi on and decision-nmaking, but the probability is that the
fetus could develop to the point of live birth. |If the woman is
ei ght nonths pregnant, it’s probable. If the nother is dying,
the renoval of life support is stayed, to give the fetus the
opportunity to live. This is standard practice. In some cases,

doctors consider whether there are one or two patients.

CHAIR DYSON clarified that conceptual Anendnent 5 deletes
"health care” and inserts “life-sustaining procedures” on page
8, line 24; page 8, line 25; and page 8, |line 28.

CHAIR DYSON asked if there was any objection. Seei ng none,
Amendnent 5 was adopt ed.

CHAI R DYSON noved Anendnent 6.

M5. SYLVESTER said this was first proposed by the Disability Law
Center and was incorporated into the working draft, version X

She said that in the case of nental illness, nothing in this
chapter overrides or undermnes the wvalidity of a properly
executed durable power of attorney. The real world scenario

that the Disability Law Center is concerned about is that
sonmeone who is in APl | oses capacity or is inconpetent.

CHAI R DYSON asked if there was any objection.

SENATOR GREEN asked about the anendnment’s |ocation on page 13,
i ne 29.

MS. SYLVESTER said the drafter could put it anywhere.

SENATOR GREEN said it is currently located between (a) and (b),
and wondered if this was desired.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -27- April 14, 2004



MS. SYLVESTER said this could be considered as a conceptual
anmendnent and could go wherever the drafter would like to find a
space for it.

CHAI R DYSON agreed that it could go where the drafter feels it
is nost appropriate. He asked if there was any objection.
There bei ng none, Anendnent 6 was adopt ed.

CHAI R DYSON noved conceptual Anmendnent 7.
SENATOR DAVI S obj ect ed.

MS. SYLVESTER said there were a couple of suggested changes to
the optional form There was discussion about the actual
wording in [Relief fromPain], with the concern that soneone not
be thinking about terminating life with pain relief, countered
with not lecturing to the patient or creating confusion about
pain nedication. VWhat was arrived at, which is a nice
conpromse, is “l direct that adequate treatnent be provided at
all times for the sole purpose of the alleviation of pain or
di sconfort;”.

TAPE 04-22, SIDE A

SENATOR GREEN asked if “or” was being omtted, to be followed by
i nstructions.

M5. SYLVESTER referred to page 30, line 25 of version B, and
said that Relief fromPain, |lines 26 — 28, were being taken out.

REPRESENTATI VE WVEYHRAUCH noted that “or” stays in.

CHAI R DYSON confirmed the new | anguage woul d be on page 30, line
26, and asked if the desire is to expand Anendnent 7.

MS. SYLVESTER confirmed sonething should be included in the
Optional form after Relief from Pain. She explained this would
be a conceptual anendnment and would still need to be worked out
Wi th Senator Guess, Chair Dyson, and Doctor Wllington. Thi s
would provide an option to discuss a person’s attitudes and
directives regarding the situation of pregnancy.

CHAI R DYSON asked for Anendnent 7 to be adopted.

SENATOR W LKEN suggested that this be called Anmendnent 7a, and
t he ot her, Amendnent 7b.

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 28- April 14, 2004



CHAI R DYSON announced t hat Amendnent 7a was adopt ed.

VS. SYLVESTER said the |I|anguage for Anendnent 7b would
essentially be, “Should |I beconme unconscious and | am pregnant,
| direct that” and would be followed on page 31, by Oher
W shes.

SENATOR DAVI S noved conceptual Amendnent 7b.

CHAI R DYSON objected, and asked M. Sylvester to review the
amendnent .

MS. SYLVESTER said it would cone after [Relief from Pain] and
before O her Wshes. The idea is that the formis designed to
have people encounter or confront these decisions. For exanple,

one concern expressed to nme was, “If I'’min a situation where
it’s ny life or ny child, I want nmy child s life to cone before
ny own.” This would provide an opportunity for soneone to state

those wi shes. They could be stated in other w shes, but w thout
having an option for pregnancy, it mght not occur to the person
who is filling out the form The idea is not to trunmp the
presunption in favor of life, or what we worked on in pregnancy.
Senat or Guess has her concerns, but it was actually suggested
for people who want to be clear that they want their child s
life to come before their own.

SENATOR W LKEN asked if 7b would insert paragraph (E) on page
30.

M5. SYLVESTER said she thought it would becone a new “(7).”
SENATOR W LKEN asked if O her Wshes woul d becone “(8).”
M5. SYLVESTER replied correct.

SENATOR GUESS asked if the objection was maintained. She stated
for the record that she has issues with the pregnancy section
because it overturns the health care directive. Regardl ess if
it is included or not, she said she thought it was extrenely
inmportant to have it in the health care directive so that those
conversations happen. Most |ikely, nost people will nmake the
decision to do everything possible to save the child, but if
that’s not in the health care directive, you get into sone
fairly murky water. It mght be better to deal wth pregnancy
in best interests, but it’s not addressed in best interests.
She said it doesn't hurt to pronpt people to have those

SENATE HES COW TTEE -29- April 14, 2004



conversations, since “not everyone gets to sit in conmttee
roonms and know t hat they should have them”

DR, WALLI NGTON said she supports this, and the major value of
putting an optional form into the law itself is that it wll
pronpt people to think about inportant decisions.

MS. SYLVESTER re-stated the proposed conceptual Amendnent 7b for
clarification.

CHAI R DYSON renoved his objection.

CHAI R DYSON asked if there was further objection. Seei ng none,
conceptual Anendnent 7b was adopt ed.

CHAI R DYSON noved to adopt Anmendnent 8.
SENATOR W LKEN obj ect ed.

IVS. SYLVESTER explained that version B discusses three
qualifying conditions. These are situations in which the
deci si on-maker nmay consider wthholding or wthdrawing |ife-
sustai ni ng procedures. One of the conditions is a state of
per manent unconsci ousness. The other is a termnal condition

and the third, an incurable or irreversible condition. W' ve
nmerged termnal condition and incurable condition and called
this termnal condition. That was a conprom se that was worked
out with Chip Wagoner from [Al aska Catholic Conference], and is
supported by Dr. WAllington as well. Regarding “life-sustaining
procedures” Chair Dyson’s |anguage that appeared in version X
has been adopted into the definition. The definition section
deals wth three definitions: qualifying condition, termnal
condition, and |ife-sustaining procedures. She noted that this
coul d be considered as a conceptual anmendnent.

CHAI R DYSON asked if the objection was naintained.

SENATOR W LKEN sai d no.

CHAI R DYSON announced that Anendnent 8 was accept ed.

MS. SYLVESTER asked for leeway from the conmttee so that the
bill could be reviewed for inconsistencies, brought to the

drafter’s attention and fixed. [The request was treated as
accept ed. |

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 30- April 14, 2004



CHAIR DYSON noted for the record that there was a slight
guestion about judicial relief on page 15, and the definition of
cardi opul nonary resuscitation on pages 10 and 11.

SENATOR GUESS asked, for the record, if there would be tine to
wor k t hrough sone issues wwth Ms. Sylvester.

CHAI R DYSON responded in the affirmative.

SENATOR WLKEN asked about passage of HCR 31, and received
confirmation that this had passed out of commttee.

CSHB 25(JUD) was held in conmttee.

There being no further business to conme before the conmttee,
Chair Dyson adjourned the neeting at 3:32 p. m

SENATE HES COW TTEE -31- April 14, 2004



